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          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I call the

          3  Committee on Zoning and Franchises to order.

          4                 The first item on today's agenda,

          5  which was preconsidered Land Use item 20035027LLY

          6  and Land Use No. 42320035207GFY, which was basically

          7  the street furniture issue as it relates to

          8  newsstands, is being laid over once again.

          9                 There are negotiations going on

         10  between the administration and the City Council, the

         11  Speaker specifically. However, due to the tragedy at

         12  City Hall recently, it has been difficult to conduct

         13  those negotiations, so this item will be laid over

         14  again.

         15                 The next item on the agenda is what

         16  is commonly known as Bridge Plaza, Land Use No. 426

         17  C020263ZMK, application by the Department of City

         18  Planning for an amendment to the zoning map changing

         19  from an M1-2, M1-1 district to an R6B district,

         20  property bounded by Concord Street and other

         21  streets. There are a number of related actions, all

         22  special permits.

         23                 All right, we'll ask the Department

         24  of City Planning to come forward and give the

         25  presentation.

                                                            4

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 In the meantime, while he's getting

          3  set up, I'll introduce the members of my Committee

          4  that are here.

          5                 On my right, Council Member Al Vann.

          6  On my left Council Member Melinda Katz and Eric

          7  Gioia.

          8                 MR. VON ENGLE: My name is Winston Von

          9  Engle. I'm the Deputy Director of the Brooklyn

         10  Office of the Department of City Planning. I'm here

         11  this morning to present to you Bridge Plaza, which

         12  is just a single rezoning. I believe the other items

         13  that you might have referred to are the following

         14  items for Renaissance Plaza, another plaza.

         15                 Regina Miah, the Director of our

         16  office, sends her regards to you particularly,

         17  Councilman Avella, and Councilman Vann. She

         18  apologizes for not being here. She took her only

         19  vacation this week, so our apologies.

         20                 Sadly, this proposed rezoning is in

         21  Councilman Davis' district. We miss him a great

         22  deal. We had hoped that he would be here to be

         23  supportive of this rezoning.

         24                 Bridge Plaza is a small community,

         25  and if I may point to this map, in the northern area
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          2  of Brooklyn, right by the Manhattan Bridge. It is

          3  dissected by the Manhattan Bridge, and Flatbush

          4  Avenue was created through, it is a predominantly

          5  residential area with some commercial and light

          6  manufacturing uses.

          7                 The community in this area had for a

          8  long time advocated a rezoning from manufacturing to

          9  a residential zone, or a zone that allows for

         10  residential uses.

         11                 We have worked closely with the

         12  community to craft this zoning proposal. We also

         13  worked very closely with the previous Council

         14  member, Council Member Mary Pinkett, in putting

         15  together this proposal. We're very happy and very

         16  proud to have it brought to this point now.

         17                 Just to give you a brief overview,

         18  the zoning here is solely manufacturing, which does

         19  not allow for new residential uses. The community

         20  asked us to change this, and we mapped together with

         21  them a number of districts that allow for

         22  residential uses and reflect the uses that are there

         23  now.

         24                 The proposal is for a contextual

         25  district, as well as commercial district, that also
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          2  allow for commercial and residential uses.

          3                 And if you'd like, I'd be glad to go

          4  over the zoning map with you in greater detail.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you. Before

          6  I open it up for questions, let me recognize that

          7  we've also been joined by Committee members, Council

          8  Member Maria Baez and Christine Quinn.

          9                 Any questions from my committee

         10  members?

         11                 I'm sorry Mike. And Council Member

         12  Mike McMahon.

         13                 Any questions from Committee members?

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 We have a number of speakers on this

         16  item. I have three speakers, so what I would like to

         17  do is call them up as one panel. All in favor.

         18  Juliette Ibelli, Tony Ibelli and Mike Weiss.

         19                 MS. IBELLI: Good morning.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Introduce

         21  yourself for the record.

         22                 MS. IBELLI: Juliette Ibelli. I'm

         23  secretary and resident of Bridge Plaza Civic

         24  Association.

         25                 I'd like to preface today we've had
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          2  several other people who would have like to attend

          3  today's meeting but the blackout, as you all know,

          4  kind of put a damper on many aspects of life in New

          5  York.

          6                 I would like to just read a brief

          7  excerpt of a letter that we've addressed to

          8  Councilpersons Avella and Katz.

          9                 "On behalf of the residents of Bridge

         10  Plaza, we write to you as constituents and neighbors

         11  regarding the rezoning of Bridge Plaza Brooklyn.

         12                 We wish to update you on our rezoning

         13  endeavors, express our overwhelming support of the

         14  proposal and encourage your support.

         15                 Briefly, Bridge Plaza is located at

         16  the foot of the Manhattan Bridge and is one of the

         17  oldest established areas in Brooklyn.

         18                 The neighborhood is home to numerous

         19  long-time home-owners, as well as recent renters.

         20  Bridge Plaza strives to project a positive image of

         21  Brooklyn for residents and visitors alike.

         22                 The residents of Bridge Plaza are

         23  dedicated to the community, community concerns,

         24  preservation issues and beautification projects.

         25                 Such a character and use, however, is
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          2  not reflected on paper by the current zoning.

          3                 Bridge Plaza is currently zoned for

          4  manufacturing. The residents of Bridge Plaza

          5  requested a correction to the zoning designation to

          6  reflect its true residential character and use.

          7                 The New York City Department of City

          8  Planning recognized that Bridge Plaza zoning indeed

          9  needed to be corrected to accurately reflect

         10  existing use.

         11                 Working with City Planning over the

         12  past several years, we have now reached the City

         13  Council stage of the ULURP process. Throughout the

         14  public review process, the proposal has received

         15  tremendous support and in the letter we list some

         16  aspects that have taken place.

         17                 I'd like to conclude that although in

         18  recent contact, Councilman James Davis expressed his

         19  support of this rezoning. It is a difficult time due

         20  to his tragic killing last month, however, we

         21  believe that the merits of the project stand on

         22  their own and we ask that you vote favorably on the

         23  proposal.

         24                 Thank you in advance for your

         25  support." This is from Bridge Plaza Civic
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          2  Association. Thank you.

          3                 MR. IBELLI: Good morning, honorable

          4  Chair, Council members and fellow New Yorkers. My

          5  name is Tony Ibelli. I am in favor of the rezoning.

          6                 I will read my statement, but before

          7  I start I would ask for a moment of reflection for

          8  the late James Davis and Dorothy Ibelli.

          9                 (Observed.)

         10                 MR. IBELLI: Thank you.

         11                 You have all the mathematical

         12  problems. You have all the maps, everything else.

         13  Seeing that I'm in front of you, I just want to give

         14  you a little history of the area. This is the oldest

         15  section of Brooklyn. It was named Bridge Plaza in

         16  1903, when they decided they were going to build the

         17  Manhattan Bridge.

         18                 We have the fourth oldest house still

         19  standing in Brooklyn on Concord Street. Because in

         20  the sixties, the great builder zoned this

         21  manufacturing. We had a house that was built at the

         22  turn of the century that had an unfortunate fire

         23  about eight years ago. Could not be rebuilt because

         24  it was manufacturing. Anything that could be rebuilt

         25  would have to be in a manufacturing area, not a
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          2  residence.

          3                 I personally live in a house that was

          4  owned by the Berry family that I named Berry Street

          5  after. The second family that owned it was Belcedo,

          6  who had a string of drugstores in the City and owned

          7  some other houses there. And then my family. So, so

          8  far we're staunch supporters of the area.

          9                 We have in our area a lot of other

         10  historical firsts, which at some time I'll be happy

         11  to come and speak to you about. Right now I'm

         12  working with the Borough President on his tourism

         13  center.

         14                 I want to thank everybody here for

         15  all their support right down the line, that we

         16  rectify a mistake that was made in the sixties and

         17  make this residential again.

         18                 This was foreseen after revolutionary

         19  war, when a group of settlers came from Connecticut,

         20  Rhode Island and Massachusetts and settled in the

         21  area on what was Yanis Rafelli's farm, and that

         22  oldest house at 167 Concord Street is a modified

         23  salt shaker which was on that farm. It's still

         24  standing there.

         25                 These people that came from New
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          2  England reflect in the names of some of the streets

          3  like Adams, Concord, Plymouth, they brought their

          4  heritage to the area because they figured this was

          5  going to be the place that was going to grow, and so

          6  far it has. We just hit a stagnate point, when it

          7  was zoned manufacturing. So, I want to thank

          8  everybody in advance, and hope that you vote

          9  unanimously to rezone it. Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         11                 If there is nobody else signed up to

         12  speak on this item, I will close the public hearing.

         13                 We will then move on to the next

         14  item, preconsidered Land Use item C030149ZMR.

         15  Application by the Northern Great Kill Civic

         16  Association for an amendment of the zoning map,

         17  changing from an R3-1 district to an R2 district.

         18  Property bounded by Arthur Kill Road and other

         19  streets.

         20                 Is there anybody here to speak on

         21  this item?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Mr. Chairman,

         23  if I may, as a representative from Staten Island,

         24  just very briefly speak to this and let my

         25  colleagues know that this is an application that is
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          2  wholeheartedly endorsed by the three Council members

          3  from Staten Island. It's one of the ways that we are

          4  trying to deal with the issue of what has become

          5  known as overdevelopment on Staten Island, and this

          6  is a downzoning effort that was initiated by the

          7  local civic association, it's also supported by the

          8  community board, and I respectfully urge all of my

          9  colleagues to help Staten Islanders in the fight to

         10  provide for a better future for all Staten Islanders

         11  and all New Yorkers with regard to Staten Island and

         12  to vote yes on this matter.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you, Mike.

         15                 If there's no speakers signed up, we

         16  will close the public hearing on this item and move

         17  to the next item, what is commonly known as

         18  Washington Plaza.

         19                 Preconsidered C030213ZMX, an

         20  application by Porceda Realty and Construction

         21  (phonetic) for an amendment of the zoning map

         22  changing from an M1-1 district to a C4-4 district

         23  property bounded by East 164th Street and other

         24  streets.

         25                 Is there anybody signed up to speak
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          2  on this item?

          3                 One of the comments I've always made

          4  in the past is that, especially when there's an

          5  application by a private developer, not to show up

          6  at the public hearing and talk in favor of their own

          7  application, I find disgraceful. This seems to be

          8  the situation on this particular item. And for the

          9  moment, I'm going to reserve judgment, while I talk

         10  to Land Use staff and see if we can track down what

         11  this application is about. I know the staff knows

         12  it, but myself and my colleagues on this Committee

         13  do not know the specifics of the application.

         14                 We will move on to the next item,

         15  which is commonly referred to as the Morrisania

         16  application. Is City Planning here to make the

         17  application? It's Land Use Item C030333ZMX and

         18  N030334ZRX. An application by Department of City

         19  Planning for an amendment of the zoning map in the

         20  Morrisania District.

         21                 MR. LOPEZ: Good morning, Chair and

         22  Council members. My name is Mr. Lopez, and I'm the

         23  Project Manager for the Morrisania area rezoning in

         24  the Bronx. My director is on her way here, Purnima

         25  Kapur, so if she gets here in time she will be
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          2  joining me on the presentation.

          3                 Basically the Morrisania area

          4  rezoning is a 13-block area located in the northern

          5  portion of the Bronx. Those that are familiar,

          6  basically it's another portion, and the Cross Bronx

          7  Expressway is located to the north and then Port

          8  Morris to the south, and the Civic Center with a

          9  courthouse is located to the west.

         10                 So, it's an 13-block area. Now, most

         11  of the land uses in the area include mostly vacant

         12  land, as you can see in the land use map, all

         13  related uses and some residential uses. The proposal

         14  is to rezone this 13 block area from existing M1 1

         15  zone to mixed use zone, which is MX R 7 2. This

         16  proposal to create more economic development and

         17  also to allow for residential uses in this area, we

         18  have worked closely with Community Board 3 and they

         19  unanimously approved this project. The Borough

         20  President of the Bronx, Adolfo Carrion, has also

         21  submitted the recommendation approving this project.

         22  The Councilman is Jose Serrano, I don't think is

         23  present here today, but we also work closely with

         24  him and if you want, I can go into more detail into

         25  what the proposal is and the zoning. Any comments,
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          2  any questions?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: That was quick

          4  for such a long time coming application.

          5                 Any questions from my Committee

          6  members?

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 MR. LOPEZ: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Is there anybody

         10  who wishes to speak on this item? Of course,

         11  everybody being in favor of it, I didn't think

         12  anybody would come down.

         13                 If not, I will close this part of the

         14  public hearing. It's a longstanding community

         15  project.

         16                 We will now move onto the next item,

         17  preconsidered N030376ZRY, which is an application by

         18  the Brooklyn Renaissance Hotel, to permit

         19  modification of urban plazas in C5-4 district on

         20  zoning lots of more than 200,000 square feet. It's

         21  commonly known as the Brooklyn Marriott project.

         22                 The one aspect that we have on it is

         23  the land use application. The related actions, map

         24  changes and the special permits were actually done

         25  by force of law because we're unable to have a
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          2  meeting in between.

          3                 I'd like to call up the applicant

          4  Harvey Shultz, Raymond Levin, and Sam Ibrahim.

          5                 Hardy, do you want to be here at the

          6  same time?

          7                 MR. ADASKO: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: And Hardy Adasko

          9  from EDC.

         10                 MR. ADASKO: My name is Hardy Adasko,

         11  from the New York City Economic Development

         12  Corporation, we're very pleased to have this

         13  application before you.

         14                 The Brooklyn Marriott Hotel has been

         15  very, very successful with the high-occupancy rate

         16  and we considered it very exciting when the Marriott

         17  Corporation, the Muss Organization came back and

         18  told us they wanted to expand their presence in

         19  Brooklyn and in New York City when they reaffirm

         20  that commitment to expand in New York City in 2001,

         21  and so we now have before you a ULRUP package, or

         22  rather the remnants of the ULURP package, that was

         23  supported unanimously by the community board and the

         24  Brooklyn Borough President and the City Planning

         25  Commission.
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          2                 Harvey Schultz from the Muss

          3  Organization will describe the details of the hotel

          4  proposal.

          5                 MR. SCHULTZ: Thank you very much,

          6  Hardy.

          7                 My name is Harvey Schultz. I'm a

          8  senior vice president of Muss Development

          9  representing Brooklyn Marriott Hotel LLC, and we're

         10  very, very pleased to be before the Zoning Committee

         11  of the City Council to urge you to support this.

         12                 We have been in the process of

         13  applying since the Giuliani Administration, have

         14  received the full support of the Bloomberg

         15  Administration and EDC and City Planning in our

         16  application.

         17                 We currently have a 376-room hotel

         18  that has been operating for over three years very

         19  successfully as Hardy said.

         20                 In our pre-planning stages we had

         21  planned for the expansion of the hotel. It was too

         22  risky at the beginning to expand that hotel. The

         23  hotel is bordered by Adams Street and a private

         24  plaza and almost the Family Court building over here

         25  is right in the base of the Brooklyn Renaissance
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          2  Plaza, which is a 32-story, 1 million square foot

          3  office building, so it's a combined structure.

          4                 We are expanding the hotel by going

          5  across the plaza, which is the private plaza to a

          6  lot attached to the building 345 Adams Street, which

          7  is a City-owned building. On that site is a small

          8  garage which houses 12 to 14 vehicles, and a cooling

          9  tower which services 345 Adams Street. Those two

         10  structures will be demolished, the cooling tower

         11  will go on our new building to continue to service

         12  345 Adams and we're working out the details of that

         13  with DCAS.

         14                 We have gone through extensive

         15  discussions with City Planning. We were operating

         16  under an approval of a plaza in '86. That plaza

         17  needed to be modified because we were now a

         18  non-conforming plaza. We constructed a zoning text

         19  change which is before you today, which accompanies

         20  other items which Councilman Avella correctly said

         21  were passed because you didn't have time to call

         22  them up because of the tragedy with Councilman

         23  Davis.

         24                 We processed all of those

         25  applications, have agreed to rebuild the plaza for
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          2  over a million dollars, and to build a bridge over

          3  the plaza.

          4                 I represent to you City Planning has

          5  spent a great deal of time on the design of that

          6  plaza. On the design of the bridge, they don't look

          7  easily on the construction bridges over a street or

          8  private plazas, but in this particular case it was

          9  pre-planned, the structure was set up that way. The

         10  lease arrangements with the City were set up that

         11  way.

         12                 So, we have a plan which has been

         13  accepted by them in a unanimous way, was approved by

         14  Community Board 2 and the Borough President on a

         15  unanimous basis.

         16                 To give you a sense of what this

         17  looks like, this will be a 24-story building in

         18  between a 32-story building, which is Brooklyn

         19  Renaissance Plaza and flanked by 345 Adams Street.

         20  The garage structure would have been formerly on

         21  that building, and here is the bridge connection

         22  which goes into the existing lobby of the hotel.

         23                 Those of you, and I assume many of

         24  you, have been to the hotel, would continue to enter

         25  the hotel through its entrance over here. You would
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          2  check in normally and then just go right across the

          3  bridge to the hotel, and if you required services in

          4  the hotel, like food and others, it would come

          5  through the second level of the bridge.

          6                 There are two dispositions in the

          7  items that were already approved. One was the lot on

          8  which we're building the new hotel, which would be a

          9  purchase. The second is the use of the first two

         10  floors of 345 Adams for retail space. They're phased

         11  dispositions, the hotel would proceed immediately

         12  subject to the approvals of the Council, EDC Board

         13  and to closing of the financing, and 345 Adams space

         14  would be given to us in 2007, once the 330 Jay

         15  Street Court building was completed and all of the

         16  spaces relocated into the new and other buildings.

         17                 To show you what the bridge looks

         18  like very quickly. It is a structure which is 45

         19  foot high. It has sufficient clearance. We are in a

         20  very secure environment. The hotel was asked to

         21  install Jersey barriers and other things by the MTA

         22  and the Law Enforcement agencies after 9/11. We did

         23  so, but this plaza which is going to be beautified

         24  will be done with ballards, which are structural

         25  ballards, it will be a very secure building which
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          2  vehicles cannot come up against.

          3                 So, this will not only be a secure

          4  plaza, but we have the DA in our office building

          5  which occupies 500,000 square feet. We also had

          6  federal law enforcement agencies in our building, so

          7  it's important both for the hotel, the office

          8  building. Cars are currently checked into our

          9  garaged, are checked, we have a 1,000 car garage

         10  currently in our building.

         11                 Just to show you two images before I

         12  close, these are as close to actual images we could

         13  create. This shows you the plaza in front of the

         14  hotel looking through almost to the KeySpan building

         15  and to MetroTech, so there is the bridge. It's a

         16  two-level bridge. And there is a plaza, in the same

         17  from a further vision.

         18                 Here are the Jay Street sides of the

         19  plaza where we will be currently building seeding

         20  areas and hopefully in the future be able to create

         21  some commercial activity there, which would make it

         22  a comfortable place for people to be.

         23                 So, we urge you, we thank you for

         24  your prior support for the hotel, we urge you to

         25  support it in the future, and we more than that urge
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          2  you to use it, because many events are held in

          3  Brooklyn and we're very proud of the facility.

          4                 Thank you very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any questions

          6  from Committee members?

          7                 Council Member Al Vann.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Yes, thank you,

          9  Mr. Chair.

         10                 Mr. Schultz, did I understand you to

         11  say that you would acquire 345 in future years? 345

         12  Adams Street?

         13                 MR. SCHULTZ: Yes. There were two

         14  dispositions that would have been on the calendar if

         15  you were able to call them up, among several others.

         16  The first is for the lot, which allows the hotel to

         17  be built. The second was, since we wanted to improve

         18  the entrance to that part of Brooklyn from Fulton

         19  Mall and Willoughby Street, along Adams Street to

         20  the hotel entrance.

         21                 We went to the Deputy Mayor's Office

         22  and requested that since the garage was part of 345

         23  Adams, that we be allowed to create commercial

         24  activity.

         25                 Deputy Mayor Doctoroff sent us over
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          2  to DCAS, we met with DCAS and they looked at that

          3  issue over a lengthy period of time and decided that

          4  it was in the interest of the City enough to be able

          5  to do that.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: What would you

          7  use it for?

          8                 MR. SCHULTZ: We've had a longstanding

          9  letter of intent from Borders Books. We intend to

         10  create a quality tenant.

         11                 It's hard for me to say that it will

         12  be Borders Books, we hope it will be, but since we

         13  don't get this property until 2007, it depends upon

         14  their ability to proceed. But we suggest to you and

         15  to others, since you know the hotel a lot, you're in

         16  it, that we plan a first quality retail activity on

         17  the ground floor of that, because that is our

         18  entranceway and we're looking to make sure that that

         19  is done properly and that is the reason we asked for

         20  it. It was part of the consideration of the Marriott

         21  Hotel and our partners that that entranceway be

         22  treated as part of the expansion.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any other

         24  questions from Committee members?

         25                 Thank you, gentlemen.
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          2                 MR. SCHULTZ: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We have one

          4  person signed up to speak and it's Mike Weiss, from

          5  MetroTech BID.

          6                 MR. WEISS: I just wanted to introduce

          7  Sam Ibrahim. He's the manager of the hotel.

          8                 MR. IBRAHIM: And just to let you

          9  know, everybody, that the hotel has been very

         10  successful. It was elected "The Hotel of the Year"

         11  among 2,600 hotels twice already, and we need it

         12  badly. Thanks very much for the opportunity to

         13  speak.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thanks very much

         15  for coming.

         16                 Mike.

         17                 MR. WEISS: Good morning, Chairman

         18  Avella and distinguished members of the Council. My

         19  name is Mike Weiss. I'm the Executive Director of

         20  the MetroTech Business Improvement District, the

         21  district in which the Renaissance Plaza Project

         22  resides.

         23                 Most of you are familiar with the

         24  MetroTech Project. It was conceived over 20 years

         25  ago, and literally has transformed the landscape of
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          2  downtown Brooklyn.

          3                 It's been described as one of the

          4  most successful public private development efforts

          5  in the country, an effort of which we can all be

          6  proud.

          7                 The Renaissance Plaza Project is the

          8  cornerstone of efforts to create a truly multi-use

          9  extended day use of our downtown. Not only has this

         10  project been a financial success, but the developer

         11  Josh Muss and the managers of the Marriott facility

         12  have involved themselves deeply in the life and work

         13  of the community at large.

         14                 Their participation and philanthropic

         15  endeavors support the community projects and

         16  organizations, including their entry into the

         17  MetroTech BID are all evidence of the value of

         18  having their voice as strong advocates for downtown

         19  Brooklyn.

         20                 Today we are here to comment on a

         21  plan that we see as an opportunity to build on these

         22  past successes with other and yet another ambitious

         23  and important addition to our community.

         24                 The plan for the expansion of the

         25  hotel is much more than adding rooms.
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          2                 The proposals presented for

          3  improvement and open space and additional ground

          4  floor retail all further the goals of creating a

          5  balanced multi-use downtown.

          6                 This effort will also add further to

          7  the employment and tax base of Brooklyn and of the

          8  City.

          9                 Finally, it sends yet another loud

         10  message about the strength of doing business in our

         11  borough, and it will encourage others to do the

         12  same.

         13                 In short, the MetroTech BID and it's

         14  33-member board voices its unqualified support of

         15  the actions presented today for your consideration,

         16  and we are looking forward to getting the proverbial

         17  shovel in the ground in the near future.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you, Mike.

         20                 We will now move on to the last item

         21  on the agenda, which is preconsidered C030403ZMQ,

         22  which is commonly referred to as the North Corona

         23  rezoning downzoning.

         24                 We are laying this item over based

         25  upon some concerns by the Council member in question

                                                            27

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  Hiram Monserrate.

          3                 However, the Department would like to

          4  make the presentation, and I understand that maybe

          5  some people want to speak on the item who didn't get

          6  the word that we were laying this over, so in that

          7  case what we will do is take their testimony and

          8  then reconvene the public hearing on this item at

          9  the next meeting.

         10                 MR. BARTH: (Not identified for the

         11  record.) Thank you, Mr. Chair. I just want to say

         12  how pleased we are with the opportunity to present

         13  the North Corona rezoning this morning.

         14                 This rezoning is one of several

         15  that's part of the Department's ambitious rezoning

         16  agenda that has a couple goals, one of which is

         17  preservation neighborhood character to minimize

         18  out-of-scale development, at the same time provide

         19  some balanced opportunities for new housing.

         20                 This particular rezoning received

         21  support, I believe unanimous support, or nearing

         22  unanimous support from the community board, as well

         23  as a favorable recommendation from the Borough

         24  President.

         25                 What I would like to do is turn this
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          2  over to John Young, the Director of our Queens

          3  office, to present the rezoning proposal. Thank you.

          4                 MR. YOUNG: Good morning. I'm John

          5  Young. I'm Director of the Queens Office, as Richard

          6  said, and I'm very pleased to be here with you to

          7  talk about the North Corona rezoning proposal that

          8  our office has worked on with the community board

          9  and the Borough President's own task force for a

         10  number of years.

         11                 This proposal is a comprehensive and

         12  balanced zoning proposal, as Richard said, to

         13  provide future housing opportunities in appropriate

         14  locations, as well as preserve the built scale and

         15  character of the North Corona community. It's a

         16  large rezoning area. It covers 120 blocks which

         17  constitutes approximately a quarter of community

         18  district 3 in the North Corona community, and it is

         19  a rezoning proposal that has been requested over the

         20  years by the community board first in 1980 and then

         21  in 1991, in which we've had a tremendous dialogue

         22  with the community in developing.

         23                 The proposal is one which we hope

         24  will achieve reforms to the 1961 zoning, which has

         25  basically governed land use in this area with
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          2  minimal changes.

          3                 There are two small changes that were

          4  made to accommodate the Louie Armstrong Intermediate

          5  School, a junction in Northern Boulevard, and then a

          6  housing development, Astoria Towers, on Astoria

          7  Boulevard.

          8                 But let me just go over the rezoning

          9  proposal for you.

         10                 The proposal which I show here on

         11  this diagram is bounded on the south by Roosevelt

         12  Avenue, which is the boundary between Community

         13  District 3 to the north and Community District 4 to

         14  the south. It's bounded on the east by 114th Street

         15  and then Flushing Meadows Corona Park and Grand

         16  Central Parkway, and on the north by Astoria

         17  Boulevard and 32nd Avenue, and the western boundary

         18  is a line that moves variously from 89th Street down

         19  to 93rd Street and to Jackson Heights community just

         20  to the west.

         21                 The study that we undertook is one

         22  that actually tries to achieve three objectives. We

         23  want to foster new housing and mixed use residential

         24  developments at higher densities on certain wide

         25  streets.
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          2                 We'd like to maintain the established

          3  character of the residential communities on the side

          4  streets, and support ground floor retail uses and

          5  mixed use development by matching the commercial

          6  overlays more closely to the development patterns.

          7                 And in particular, the existing

          8  zoning does not correlate to the established

          9  development patterns in the community, and so that

         10  this is a major opportunity for us to correct that.

         11                 And the other issue that we're trying

         12  to address is that for a long time this area has

         13  undergone a tremendous population increase.

         14                 Community district 3 grew by 40,000

         15  residents between 1990 and 2000. From much of that

         16  growth there was not a commensurate increase in

         17  housing production and new housing, and actually in

         18  last week's daily news, if you saw the article, this

         19  is one of the areas where illegal housing units have

         20  largely proliferated and that that has led to a

         21  substandard condition where existing housing units

         22  are subdivided into smaller and smaller units.

         23                 And only recently has there been an

         24  uptick in new housing construction, and what we've

         25  seen actually with that uptick is, again, how the
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          2  1961 zoning does not guide development in a way to

          3  be more reflective of adjoining buildings in

          4  existing context.

          5                 So, our zoning strategy is basically

          6  to use lower density zones, contextual zones on the

          7  side streets, and again target certain wide streets

          8  for increases in densities.

          9                 Again, the existing zoning basically

         10  will split the area in the middle with an R5

         11  district on the north, basically 34th and 35th

         12  Avenues, and then R 6 district on the south down to

         13  Roosevelt Avenue.

         14                 And we're going to actually treat the

         15  areas based on their context more closely.

         16                 So, starting up at the top of the

         17  rezoning area, the R5 district that existed on those

         18  side streets would be rezoned to an R4 district. The

         19  R5 is a medium density district. The R4 is a

         20  slightly lower residence district. The R5 has a

         21  maximum floor area ratio of 1.25.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Mr. Chair,

         23  sorry to interrupt. The map is too far away, can you

         24  just tell me what the borders are? I just can't see

         25  that far. I'm sorry.
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          2                 MR. YOUNG: Again, the borders are

          3  Roosevelt Avenue on the south, 114th Street on the

          4  east, Astoria Boulevard and 32nd Avenue on the

          5  north, and then variously from 89th Street to 93rd

          6  Street on the west.

          7                 So, the area that we're focusing on

          8  right now is north of Northern Boulevard and from

          9  Junction Boulevard over to about 113th Street, and

         10  those side streets are currently zoned R5. They

         11  allow residential developments, multi-family

         12  housing, and they have produced a number of housing

         13  units recently, but most of that housing has

         14  actually been two-family, and at a context closer to

         15  the R4. We believe the R4 will certainly guide and

         16  develop housing appropriate to this portion of the

         17  study area.

         18                 And the area then along Astoria

         19  Boulevard itself, and on Northern Boulevard would be

         20  rezoned from R5 and a small C8 1 district, which is

         21  the western end of Northern Boulevard. That's a

         22  non-residence district, to a residence designation

         23  of R6, which is a medium density district, it has a

         24  maximum residential FAR of 2.43, or if one uses the

         25  quality housing provisions, which are an incentive
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          2  to develop housing, which is sort of providing

          3  street walls, a lower scale in height, maximum

          4  height contextual option is 70 feet, so you get a

          5  building of about seven stories. That district would

          6  then be an incentive for mixed-use housing on

          7  Northern and Astoria Boulevards. It actually matches

          8  the small R 6 district so it was put on Astoria

          9  Boulevard for the Astoria Towers about 12 years ago.

         10                 The other growth corridor, but it's

         11  more of an infil growth corridor, because there

         12  aren't as many underutilized sites on it. As some of

         13  you may be familiar on Northern Boulevard, we have a

         14  number of open uses on it, vehicles storage,

         15  automotive repair, actually uses that sort of come

         16  over to the area from Willets Point, and we actually

         17  would believe that the residential context and mixed

         18  use context would be more appropriate for those

         19  portions of Astoria Northern Boulevard.

         20                 But along Junction Boulevard, which

         21  bisects the western part of our study area, it runs

         22  at an angle, along there that's where currently you

         23  have larger apartment blocks in the north and then a

         24  retail corridor as you get down to Roosevelt Avenue

         25  and the subway station, that would be rezoned to an
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          2  R 6A, which is a contextual zone which mandates

          3  quality housing, and, again, it would be 3 FAR

          4  maximum, 70-foot height limit on any new

          5  developments in the R 6A.

          6                 The remainder of the side streets

          7  would be rezoned to -- excuse me. The side streets

          8  immediately south of Northern Boulevard would retain

          9  the R 5 district that is presently there. That

         10  district basically matches the type of developments

         11  that are there. There are one and two family and

         12  multi-family houses at a moderate density, usually

         13  around 1 FAR or 1.2 FAR, and there has been limited

         14  redevelopment in this area because there haven't

         15  been that many vacant sites and what we've seen is

         16  that in those areas we've gotten two-family and

         17  three-family homes, which is what the R 5 district

         18  produces as a maximum building height of 35 feet.

         19                 The area which is currently R 6 would

         20  be rezoned on the side streets to R 6B. It is a

         21  contextual lower density zone. The zone has a

         22  maximum FAR of 2. It is basically reducing the

         23  development potential in this area by up to 33

         24  percent. On certain wide streets, including 108th

         25  Street where there have been actually fairly large
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          2  scale assemblages occurring. There's an incentive to

          3  develop 3 FAR on 108th Street under the proposal,

          4  that will be reduced to 2 FAR and that would more

          5  closely match the type of buildings that you have in

          6  this area, which again are two to three stories,

          7  and, again, are one-, two-, three- or multi-family,

          8  there are small apartment blocks as you get closer

          9  on 108th and 111th to Roosevelt.

         10                 The zone actually offers certain

         11  protections, also that the current zoning doesn't.

         12  Under the current zoning actually you haven't been

         13  seeing development that actually achieves the full

         14  FAR, but you have seen even low density development,

         15  two-story development, which alters the character of

         16  the street, because under the current R 6, there are

         17  no front yards that are required. You can go right

         18  up to the sidewalk line and where you have adjoining

         19  properties that provide a front yard, then you have

         20  those buildings now fronting or adjoining blank

         21  walls of the new development.

         22                 In addition, there's a front yard

         23  match-up provision where that -- in the R 6B, where

         24  you have a building that provides a front yard,

         25  anywhere from five to 15 feet deep from the
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          2  sidewalk, then your new development has to match

          3  that existing adjoining neighbor's front yard.

          4                 So, there is actually a provision to

          5  make sure that there is a street wall contained in

          6  your new development.

          7                 The other issue is the height limit.

          8  There is a height limit which you don't have today

          9  under the R 6, you could achieve up to 11- to

         10  13-story buildings if you have a large enough site.

         11  There is one development, the Meadow Manor Complex

         12  on 34th Avenue at 113th Street, which was developed

         13  in the early seventies as a tower in the park

         14  development. Ideally that type of development would

         15  not be appropriate on the side streets, and we

         16  really feel the R 6B, which has a height limit of 50

         17  feet and a street height limit of 40 feet, ensures

         18  that development will not rise in tower above the

         19  adjoining buildings, and in fact what you more

         20  likely see here are three story buildings which

         21  develop on those sites under the R 6B.

         22                 The last issue that we want to

         23  address is an increase in commercial overlay zoning.

         24  The population increase in the area has engendered

         25  an increase demand for local retail and service
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          2  providers to come to the area, but the 1961

          3  overlays, commercial overlays, did not match the

          4  existing developments, nor did they certainly

          5  anticipate the increase in commercial needs in the

          6  area.

          7                 So, in applying these, we're going to

          8  apply them to all of the major corridors in the

          9  rezoning area, so Northern Boulevard and Junction

         10  Boulevard and Roosevelt Avenue pretty much have

         11  continuous commercial overlays. We think that will

         12  help a lot of businesses. We actually received a

         13  petition from business owners in 2001 to actually

         14  have this rezoning take place as soon as possible,

         15  because there were concerns that they had that as

         16  businesses -- that there might be enforcement

         17  actions taken against them.

         18                 So, that was one component that we

         19  worked closely with the community and the businesses

         20  in the area in making sure that the commercial

         21  overlays matched what was going on in the community.

         22                 So, just to recap, this is a rezoning

         23  proposal that has been designed by this community

         24  for a number of years, there's been a series of

         25  community meetings held on it throughout the study
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          2  area and we believe that the consensus that we

          3  achieved here has been enjoying a lot of support in

          4  the community and the Borough President's Zoning

          5  Task Force. The 1961 commercial overlays were mapped

          6  to a depth of 150 feet, which is contrary to the

          7  depth of the properties fronting on Northern

          8  Boulevard, those are only 100-foot deep properties,

          9  once you get beyond that the properties actually

         10  face the side streets, and to avoid the creeping

         11  commercialization of those side streets, we want to

         12  cut back the commercial overlays to match the depth

         13  of those lots on Northern Boulevard to 100 feet.

         14                 And then the big change is along 37th

         15  Avenue, which currently east of Junction Boulevard

         16  does not have commercial overlays but has

         17  preexisting commercial uses often below residential

         18  uses, it's a mixed use corridor, as well as the

         19  103rd and 108th Street south of 37th Avenue, all of

         20  these areas would receive these 100 feet deep

         21  commercial overlays to match and guide commercial

         22  development along those corridors. We think that

         23  will help a lot of businesses. We actually received

         24  a petition from business owners in 2001 to actually

         25  have this rezoning take place as soon as possible,
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          2  because there were concerns that they had that as

          3  businesses, that there might be enforcement actions

          4  taken against them.

          5                 So that was one component that we

          6  worked closely with the community and the businesses

          7  in the area in making sure that the commercial

          8  overlays matched what was going on in the community.

          9                 So, just to recap, this zoning

         10  proposal that has been desired by this community for

         11  a number of years, has been a series of community

         12  meetings held on it throughout the study area, and

         13  we believe that the consensus that we achieved here

         14  has been enjoying a lot of support in the community

         15  and the Borough President's Zoning Task Force.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         17                 Questions from any members?

         18                 Thank you so much.

         19                 MR. YOUNG: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We have Borough

         21  President Helen Marshall is here to speak on the

         22  item.

         23                 Madam Borough President.

         24                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARSHALL: Hi. This

         25  is my first time to speak before this Committee. I
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          2  see my old friend Al Vann from the Assembly, and our

          3  beautiful new Council members, some of my former

          4  colleagues, it's a pleasure to be coming before you

          5  today.

          6                 I come before you today to speak in

          7  support of this rezoning. Just to give you a little

          8  history, this plan has been kicked around, modified,

          9  reshaped, over 20 years.

         10                 I've lived in this community since

         11  1957. We own our own home since 1960 and I've been

         12  very active, involved in this community.

         13                 We had City Planning a number of

         14  years ago -- how many years ago, John, Stuby? In

         15  1970, our own Department of City Planning

         16  surprisingly got private consultants to look over

         17  our area because clearly the whole idea of urban

         18  renewal, and we looked at it as people removal, we

         19  wanted to do the right thing.

         20                 Their conclusion was that we needed

         21  scatter site housing, and of course it talked about

         22  some of the other developments that we have in the

         23  community. We did that. We built about 30 two-family

         24  houses, City-owned lots, worked with Sony Mae, all

         25  of those houses are still standing, still well kept,
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          2  and most of them by the original owners. That's the

          3  way I'd love to see everything go, but in this day

          4  of reality, this particular area, this 120-block

          5  area which includes some portion of Jackson Heights,

          6  the most easterly edge of Jackson Heights, which is

          7  just about all apartment buildings, the rest of it

          8  is the entire area has experienced rapid population

          9  growth, I believe that it's the fastest-growing

         10  community in the entire City, mostly because it is

         11  also, like sort of the epicenter from immigration,

         12  people from all over the world, largely from South

         13  American countries, the Caribbean, Russia, a number

         14  of places, and it's amazing that we do not have more

         15  homeless people, but I know why, because we have

         16  mostly illegal conversions. The people would rather

         17  stay there under those conditions than to be

         18  homeless.

         19                 This plan will help, in all of this

         20  we have to have some sort of uniformed plan. The

         21  reason this plan has taken so long is because it was

         22  trying to meet the need, trying to keep up with

         23  this. The community board, I sat on that community

         24  board for 15 years, they support the plan because

         25  they understand the background.
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          2                 Now, some of the areas I know we've

          3  looked over every aspect of it, and I think that the

          4  plan has tried to answer that. I'm sorry that I'm

          5  not able to say that I talked with my Councilman. We

          6  had a meeting in my office with him and with Melinda

          7  to really get into this to make sure that we were

          8  all on the same page. He knows, and both of us share

          9  the concern that if we don't pass this plan,

         10  something that is existing that we did not plan on

         11  is that a good portion of this area is zoned R 6

         12  right now. This plan proposes to bring it down to R

         13  6 B, which is very different. But under R 6 we have

         14  developers buying up whole block, in fact in this

         15  case on 108th Street they bought the whole block and

         16  they're rushing to get that foundation in the ground

         17  because if you pass this bill, if you pass this, it

         18  will stand and they will not be able to continue

         19  with their development.

         20                 They've already built some five-story

         21  buildings with a drop back on the top floor, and now

         22  they've even bought up a group of homes, about five,

         23  four or five homes and they're demolishing all of

         24  them. And we're dreadfully worried about what's

         25  going to be replacing it and we're worried that that
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          2  kind of hemorrhaging is going to continue without

          3  this rezoning.

          4                 So that I really strongly recommend

          5  that you pass this rezoning plan and that we go back

          6  to City Planning and see if we can get some

          7  revisions in certain areas, which I know the

          8  Councilman is concerned, I share his concern, but

          9  this tries to keep the community in the same

         10  contextual zoning that it is, as best as it can.

         11  There is a tremendous need for housing and of course

         12  I would love to see more and I'm working hard to try

         13  to develop more affordable housing for the families

         14  that live there. But the plan as it stands now I

         15  believe is the best that we could do under the

         16  circumstances.

         17                 Any questions, I'd be happy to

         18  answer, because John already gave you all the

         19  details.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any questions

         21  from my colleagues?

         22                 Thank you, Madam Borough President.

         23                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARSHALL: Thank you

         24  for hearing us.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Appreciate your
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          2  presence here this morning, and all the work that

          3  you put in on this, because I know it is a

          4  longstanding community request.

          5                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARSHALL: Right.

          6                 We expected people from the community

          7  board, but you know we had a big blackout here. As a

          8  matter of fact, we're sort of looking at pooled

          9  together notes, we couldn't get to our computers or

         10  anything, but thank you very much for hearing us.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         12                 If there is nobody signed up to speak

         13  else on this, we will keep the public hearing open

         14  and I just have one other speaker on another item,

         15  Wilhelm, is it Ronda? From the Bronx Borough

         16  President's Office, came after we had the public

         17  hearing, did they want to speak on the Morrisania?

         18                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE:

         19  He had to leave. I assume he was in favor of it.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I will now ask

         21  Counsel to call the vote on the items just to

         22  refresh everybody's memory.

         23                 The legislation on the pay telephones

         24  and the newsstands, as it relates to street

         25  furniture, are being laid over. Bridge Plaza
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          2  application, chair recommends approval, the Staten

          3  Island rezoning, chair recommends approval, and let

          4  me just congratulate City Planning on moving ahead

          5  on that, and some of these other rezonings,

          6  Morrisania, and North Corona.

          7                 Amanda Burden has done a terrific job

          8  since she has taken over as Commissioner of City

          9  Planning, and longstanding applications are finally

         10  moving ahead. So, I think City Planning deserves

         11  congratulations.

         12                 Morrisania rezoning, the Chair

         13  recommends approval. Brooklyn Marriott, Chair

         14  recommends approval. And as I stated, the North

         15  Carolina rezoning is being laid over but we will

         16  keep the public hearing open. And I just want to

         17  make a quick comment on Washington Plaza, which is

         18  the application submitted by Porceda Realty and

         19  Construction, and the Chair recommends approval. It

         20  is a supermarket that the community board has

         21  overwhelmingly supported and the Borough President;

         22  however, I must publicly admonish Porceda Realty and

         23  Construction for not showing up, not even having

         24  given the City Council the courtesy to ask them

         25  questions about the application. It will be so
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          2  communicated to this company that they should never,

          3  ever do this again, and the next time it happens, I

          4  feel pitty on them. But the Chair recommends

          5  approval because it is a community project. It is a

          6  supermarket, and we all know how tough it is to get

          7  supermarkets these days in the inner-city.

          8                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Chair Avella.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Aye on all.

         10                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         11  Quinn.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Aye on all.

         13                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         14  Baez.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Aye on all.

         16                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         17  Gioia.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Yes on all.

         19                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         20  McMahon.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Aye on all.

         22                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         23  Vann.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Aye on all.

         25                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The vote stands
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          2  at six in the affirmative, none in the negative, no

          3  abstentions, and referred to the full Land Use

          4  Committee.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you,

          6  everyone. This closes the Subcommittee on Zoning and

          7  Franchises.

          8                 (Hearing concluded at 10:55 a.m.)
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          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 18th day of August 2003.
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